
St Ignace Zoom is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

 

Topic: City Council Meeting 

Time: Jul 5, 2022 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82063536777 

 

Meeting ID: 820 6353 6777 

One tap mobile 

+16469313860,,82063536777# US 

+13017158592,,82063536777# US (Washington DC) 

 

Dial by your location 

        +1 646 931 3860 US 

        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 

        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

        +1 669 444 9171 US 

Meeting ID: 820 6353 6777 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/k9bY0byC8 



 

           
 

    CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

Tuesday, July 05, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers/Virtual Hybrid Attendance Meeting 

Zoom Meeting ID: 820 6353 6777 

 
****A G E N D A**** 

 
1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance 
3) Invocation 
4) Roll Call 
5) Additions to Agenda 
6) Public Comment Regarding Agenda Items (2-minute limit) 
7) Consideration of Minutes of June 13, 2022, June 20, 2022, and June 27, 2022 
8) Old Business 
9) New Business 
 

A. Rezoning Request 
B. Fire Truck Repairs Update 
C. Peddlers & Solicitors Ordinance Amendments 
D. Approval of Election Inspectors 
E. Election E-Poll Book Laptop Computer Purchase 
F. Overnight Stay—Chief Brown 
 

10) Consideration of Bills  
11) Public Comment Regarding Non-Agenda Items (3-minute limit) 
12) City Manager’s Report 
13) Committee Reports 
14) Council Member Comments     
 

City of St. Ignace is an equal opportunity employer and provider  
TDD (800) 649-3777 



City of St. Ignace 

Council Proceedings 
(Unofficial) 

 
A Special Meeting of the St. Ignace City Council was held on Monday, June 13, 2022, in the 
City Hall Council Chambers. 
The meeting was called to order at 6:34 p.m. by Mayor LaLonde. 
 
PRESENT FROM CITY COUNCIL: Councilmember Cronan, Councilmember Fullerton, Mayor 
LaLonde, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, and Councilmember Williford.  
 
Councilmember Pelter was in attendance via Zoom during the closed session, but was unable 
to officially participate under PA 267 of 1976, Open Meetings Act. Her absence is excused due 
to illness. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Darcy Long, City Manager; Connie Litzner; Charles Palmer, City Attorney 
(Zoom); Kurt McCamman, City Attorney (Zoom); Sean Fosmire, City Attorney (Zoom); 
Stephanie Baar, Assistant to the City Manager; Tony Brown, Police Chief. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. ENTER CLOSED SESSION – CONSULT WITH ATTORNEY REGARDING SPECIFIC 
PENDING LITIGATION [Section 8(1)(a), MCL 15.268(e)]. 
 
At 6:35 p.m. it was moved by Councilmember Williford, seconded by Councilmember 
Cronan, to enter into closed session to discuss pending litigation with City Attorneys 
Charles Palmer, Kurt McCamman, and Sean Fosmire.  
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes: Councilmember Cronan, Councilmember Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Mayor Pro-
Tem St. Louis, and Councilmember Williford.  
Absent: Councilmember Pelter. 
No: None. 
Motion carried unanimously.   

 
 

At 8:04 p.m., it was moved by Councilmember Cronan, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, 
to leave closed session. Motion passed unanimously.  

 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 

 
 

 
              

       Stephanie Baar, 
Assistant to the City Manager 



City of St. Ignace 
Council Proceedings 

(Unofficial) 
 
A Regular Meeting of the St. Ignace City Council was held on Monday, June 20, 2022, in the 
City Hall Council Chambers as a hybrid attendance meeting with Zoom video conference 
available. 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor LaLonde, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  Councilmember Williford led the invocation.                                         
 
PRESENT FROM CITY COUNCIL:  Councilmembers Cronan, Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, 
Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 
   
ABSENT:  None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Darcy Long, City Manager; Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer; Stephanie 
Baar, Assistant to the City Manager; Charles Palmer, City Attorney; Scott Marshall, DDA 
Director; Shirley Sorrels, Museum Director. 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
Councilmember Pelter – Policy Committee; Police Union Contract; Blight Concerns. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – AGENDA ITEMS (2-min limit) 
Public comment was received regarding the 556 N State Street property. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES OF THE JUNE 6, 2022, REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING: 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve 
the minutes from the June 6, 2022, Regular Council meeting, as presented. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmember Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem 
         St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford and Cronan. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES OF THE JUNE 13, 2022, SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING: 
After some brief discussion, Councilmember Pelter requested a correction be made to the 
minutes presented for the June 13th Special Council meeting. 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to postpone 
approval of the minutes from the June 13, 2022, Special Council meeting. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers 
         Williford, Cronan and Fullerton. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
No old business discussed. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 



 
A.  SPECIAL EVENT RESOLUTION – JULY 4TH CELEBRATION 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

The following Resolution was offered for adoption by Councilmember Fullerton, 
supported by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis: 
 

WHEREAS, the St. Ignace Chamber of Commerce requests permission to conduct the 
2022 July 4th Celebration; and 
 

WHEREAS, this event requires the usage of BL I-75, American Legion Park and the 
American Legion Park Parking Lot; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 413 of the City of St. Ignace, “The Peddler’s Ordinance”, 
requires certain criteria be met in order for the event to be held. 

 
WHEREAS, this event will be required to follow all COVID Federal, State and Local 

regulations in place at that time to qualify for Special Event status; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the St. Ignace City Council does approve 
the St. Ignace Chamber of Commerce to be a “Special Event Organization” and has determined 
that the St. Ignace Chamber of Commerce does meet the criteria established in the various 
sections of the Ordinance No. 413, and grants St. Ignace Chamber of Commerce the authority 
to control vending approved by the City during the event; and 
 

FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does approve the use of BL I-75, 
American Legion Park and the American Legion Park parking lot for this event, for the following 
dates and times.  

 

• BL I-75, closed from State A Street to High Street, Monday, July 4th, from 4:00 
p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

• Community Party Monday at the American Legion Park, July 4th, from 4:00 p.m. 
to 10:00 p.m. 

• American Legion Park parking lot partially closed Sunday, July 3rd, at 8:00 p.m. to 
Monday, July 4th at 10:00 p.m. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan,  
         Fullerton and Mayor LaLonde. 
No:  None. 
Absent:  None. 
Resolution declared Adopted. 
 
B.  RESOLUTION – STRAITS AREA EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICE (EMS) AUTHORITY 
MILLAGE 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ST. IGNACE SUPPORTING THE 
STRAITS AREA EMS AUTHORITY IN ITS REQUEST FOR AN OPERATING MILLAGE. 

 



The following resolution was offered for adoption by Councilmember Pelter, supported by 
Councilmember Cronan: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of St. Ignace is a member of the Straits Area Emergency Medical 
Services (SAEMS) Authority, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority provides services to the City of St. Ignace and the surrounding 
area, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority requires additional funding for its operations, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to request a separate operating millage, to be voted 
upon by its participating municipalities, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of St. Ignace and its citizens would benefit from increased EMS 
services provided with funds from said millage,  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of St. Ignace, 
that the City of St. Ignace supports the Straits Area Emergency Medical Services Authority in its 
request for a system-wide operating millage. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde 
         and Councilmember Pelter. 
No:  None. 
Absent:  None. 
Resolution declared Adopted. 
 
C.  DDA PURCHASE OF 556 NORTH STATE STREET 
 
DDA Director Marshall and Museum Director Sorrels informed Council that the DDA is 
considering purchasing the 556 North State Street property for $255,000 and is requesting 
Council’s support.  The DDA is proposing to make a down payment of $50,000, plus closing 
costs from the Museum fund balance, then financing the remaining amount over 20 years. 
It was moved by Councilmember Fullerton, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, to support 
the DDA in their efforts to purchase this property.  After a lengthy discussion regarding potential 
use of the property and the commitment of DDA funding, it was the consensus of Council  for 
Councilmember Fullerton to withdraw his original motion to better describe a recommendation 
made by Mayor LaLonde.   
At this time, it was moved by Councilmember Fullerton, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, 
to postpone the Council’s decision to support the DDA and schedule a Special Council meeting 
for Monday, June 27th at 7:00 p.m. to further discuss the purchase of the property.  Council 
requested that DDA Director Marshall invite the current property owner to attend the meeting as 
well. 
                                            
Roll Call Vote:        
Yes:  Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter and 
         Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 



D.  FINANCIALS 
 
Council reviewed the financials for May 2022 and discussed the Fire Department’s truck repair 
issue and work on City Hall for the new office rental in the basement office.  
 
E.  CITY HALL CLOSED AT 12:00 NOON ON JUNE 24TH FOR CAR SHOW EVENT 
 
City Manager Long requested Council’s consideration to close City Hall to the public on Friday, 
June 24th at noon due to the Car Show event activity. 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Williford, to approve 
closing City Hall to the public at 12:00 p.m. on Friday, June 24, 2022. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Cronan, Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor 
         Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, to approve 
paying the bills in the amount of $44,440.42. 
 

2 X 4 Construction - J. 
West  

City Hall Rental Office Wall Repair - 
Labor $1,235.00  

Ace Hardware  May Statement 2022 $2,091.30  

Airgas  DPW-Rental Gas $173.95  

Amazon  May Statement 2022 $1,631.77  
Anderson Tackman & 
Company PLC  Annual Audit Progressive Billing $3,786.90  

Bendzinski & Co  Audit 2020 Filing $1,175.00  

Cedar Forest Products  

Community Cultural Pavilion Materials 
(Installment #1) $7,000.00  

Crane Engineering  

Annual Spring Maintenance Heritage 
Lift Station $2,541.69  

Graham Electric Motor 
SVC.  

Annual P.M. on City Generators-
WWTR & LBE $2,966.71  

Harrell's   Turf Materials and Product $2,548.67  

ICMA  Membership - S. Baar $175.00  

Kimball Midwest  Lagoon’s Supplies $491.96  
LMAS District Health 
Dept  Food Service License $389.00  

Marks Tire  Meter Car Tires $722.48  



Michigan Rural Water 
Assoc  2022 Membership $780.00  

Northern Shirt Co  Little League hats/visors $1,837.50  

Oscar W. Larson Co.  Global Main Display $709.05  
Paula Drown - Drowning 
in Clean  City Hall Rental Office Project $1,065.00  

Pitney Bowes  City Hall Postage Meter Contract $407.94  
Precision Edge Outdoor 
Services  Lawn Agreements $3,245.00  

Sault Printing  May Statement 2022 $206.79  

Spartan Distributors  Golf Supplies $650.74  
Spartan Nash/Family 
Fare  May Statement 2022 $230.49  

St. Ignace In Bloom  Marina Flowers $169.00  

St. Ignace True Value  May Statement 2022 $2,801.20  

Straits Building Center  May Statement 2022 $3,376.75  

The St. Ignace News  May Statements 2022 $525.28  

United Laboratories  DPW - Multi Tool/Bio Accel $402.00  

USA Bluebook  WTR Plant Supplies $1,104.25  

     

   $44,440.42  
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmember Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem 
         St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford and Cronan. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT - NON-AGENDA ITEMS (3 min limit) 
Public comment was received regarding the DDA’s proposal to purchase property, the 
boardwalk and the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
City Manager Long updated Council on the status of the Dock #3 concerns with Arnold Freight, 
stating a meeting will be scheduled after Labor Day due to the busy schedules.  City Manager 
Long also discussed the following:  C2AE has begun performing the soil borings on Ferry Lane; 
Merit Network is proposing to utilize space near Little Bear East and will offer free internet hook-
up to the facility; and opportunities for electric vehicle charging stations.  City Manager also 
noted that Recreation Director Mills has submitted her resignation effective July 18th. 



 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
Councilmember Pelter – Blight Concerns: 
Councilmember Pelter inquired about the process to address blight issues.  City Manager Long 
stated letters have been sent recently and will be monitored for compliance. 
 
Councilmember Pelter – Policy Committee: 
Councilmember Pelter requested to schedule a Policy Committee meeting to complete the 
review on the Employee Handbook Policy and address compiling all updated policies into the 
book. 
 
Councilmember Pelter – Police Union Contract: 
Councilmember Pelter requested an update regarding the implementation of the Police Union 
terms.  City Manager Long and Assistant Baar indicated that recent discussion verifying uniform 
reimbursements have been decided upon, and the City is now waiting on a signed, updated 
contract. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Mayor LaLonde informed Council that appointments need to be considered to the DDA Board, 
Zoning Board of Appeals and the Finance Committee. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
Councilmembers took this time to commend DDA Director Marshall and Museum Director 
Sorrels on their work with the Museum. 
 
CLOSED SESSION – CITY MANAGER REVIEW, MCL 15.268(a)  
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, seconded by Councilmember Fullerton, to enter in to 
Closed Session at 9:01 p.m. regarding a City Manager review, per MCL 15.268(a), “to consider 
a periodic personnel evaluation of a public employee if the named individual requests a closed 
hearing”. 
  
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Cronan, Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor 
         Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Council returned from Closed Session at 10:02 p.m. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:05 p.m. 
 
______________________________                          _________________________________ 
       William LaLonde, Mayor                                       Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 



 

 
1 

Council 
Proceedings 
(Unofficial) 

 
A Special Meeting of the St. Ignace City Council was held on Monday, June 27, 2022, in the 
City Hall Council Chambers as a hybrid attendance meeting, with Zoom video conference 
available. 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor LaLonde, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  Councilmember Williford gave the invocation. 
 
Present:   Councilmembers Cronan, Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor  
                 Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 
 
Absent:  None. 
 
Staff Present:  Darcy Long, City Manager; Charles Palmer, City Attorney (Zoom); Andrea 
Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer; Scott Marshall, DDA Director; Shirley Sorrels, Museum Director; 
Tony Brown, Police Chief. 
 
A.  DDA PURCHASE OF 556 NORTH STATE STREET 

 

DDA Director Marshall summarized the presentation given at the June 20th Council meeting and 

added that the purchase of this property would expand Museum parking, office space for the 

Museum Director and potentially be utilized for a cultural center and various programs.  After 

some discussion involving DDA Board members, it was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, 

seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to support the DDA in their purchase of the property at 

556 North State Street. 

 

Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmember Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem  
         St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford and Cronan. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

B.  CLOSED SESSION – CITY MANAGER REVIEW PURSUANT TO MCL 15.268(a) 

Mayor LaLonde stated the reason for the Closed Session is to discuss the evaluation of the City 
Manager.  City Manager Long requested that Council to enter into Closed Session to discuss 
his review, pursuant to MCL 15.268(a) “to consider a periodic personnel evaluation of a public 
employee if the named individual requests a closed hearing.” 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Fullerton, to enter into 
Closed Session at 7:25 p.m. to discuss the City Manager’s employment review. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers  
         Williford, Cronan and Fullerton. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 



 

 
2 

 
Council returned from Closed Session at 8:45 p.m.  At this time, it was moved by 
Councilmember Williford, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve a three-month 
probationary period, beginning July 1st through September 30th, for City Manager Long to 
accomplish goals identified by Council in Closed Session.  Council will schedule to reconvene 
after September 30th for a follow-up evaluation.    
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, 
         Fullerton and Mayor LaLonde. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ADJOURN 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:51 p.m. 

 

____________________________           ________________________________________ 

William LaLonde, Mayor                                 Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer     
                                  















S. AIRPO
RT RO

AD
168’

388’

25’ 50’

60’

25’

A

25’ 20’

PARKIN
G

30’

50’

B

25’30’ 20’ 25’20’ 20’ 20’20’ 30’

D D
The Retreat2 units (A/B)

36
Parking

Spots
D

= Dum
pster

Tiki RV Park & Campground



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

Oshkosh Corporation Classification - Restricted 

P I E R C E  M A N U F A C T U R I N G  I N C .  

  
AN OSHKOSH CORPORATION COMPANY ⚫ ISO 9001 CERTIFIED 

 
8 1 6  C O M M E R C I A L  A V E N U E  

W E Y A U W E G A ,  W I   5 4 9 8 3             

9 2 0 - 8 6 7 - 2 1 4 2  ⚫  F A X  9 2 0 - 8 6 7 - 2 6 2 4  

 

 

13 June 2022 

 

Todd Lincoln  

Halt Fire 

 

SUBJECT:  ST. IGNACE FIRE DEPT. – CORROSION REPORT 

 

 

Todd,  

 

I’ve put together a short report on the truck that was inspected on June 8, 2022.  Please review and let me 

know if you have any questions.   

 

 

Pumper  #15985 
This truck has delanimation on the bottom driver, passenger side lower frame rail flange located at the rear 

of the cab pump house area. Delamination is also present on the top frame flange on the driver, passenger 

side located in the water tank cradle area. 

  

 

Conclusion/recommendation; the areas where corrosion is starting should be cleaned-up and the area treated 

with a rust inhibitor to prevent it from getting any worse.  POR 15 can be used to coat those areas, prime, 

paint and Carwell can be used to wick into the area between the top of the frame rail and mounting brackets. 

Pumper unit #15985TR will need to be inspected annually at a minimum.  

 

The pumper unit can be put back into service once the corrosion issue are resolved. 

 

If you have any questions, or need any further clarification, please feel free to contact me. 

 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Alan Boushley 

PIERCE MANUFACTURING, INC. 

Senoir Product Specailist 
 

 

 

Pierce noted that the corrosion issues could be cleaned without the frame needing replacement, which lowers the cost a lot. Repairs are currently being done on the truck for an estimated cost of $10-15k. The FD has $25k in their equipment maintenance line item that they can use to cover the cost. 



June 3, 2022 
 

Purpose statement: 

The St. Ignace Peddlers and Solicitors Ordinance is intended to protect the health, safety, and welfare of 

St. Ignace residents and businesses by licensing transient vendors, controlling the location of operation 

of such vendors, and by limiting the number allowed to operate within the city. Special Events 

Organizers are allowed to contract with and invite transient vendors as part of an approved Special 

Event, providing that Special Event Vendors comply with all applicable local, state, and federal rules and 

regulations. It is the City of St. Ignace’s intent to allow events and vending such that the vitality of 

downtown St. Ignace improves, remains healthy, and serves to benefit the community. 

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 

Sec. 22-1. Definitions 

Add:  

Special Event means any activity conducted upon or involving the use of City-owned streets, alleys, 

parking lots, parks, facilities, sidewalks, sports fields, and non-motorized trails, which are different from 

or greater than the usual routine use by the general public. These activities include but are not limited 

to parades, musical performance entertainment, public shows, exhibitions, arts and craft shows, 

festivals, walk and run events, sporting events and events where alcoholic beverages are being sold or 

host served. 

Temporary Sales Structure means anything, for the use of vending, constructed or erected requiring 

location on the ground which is not permanently affixed or attached to a foundation or not designed to 

be permanently located in the place where it is located (e.g., temporary sheds, containers, semi-trailers, 

tents, trucks or other enclosures for persons or goods which are movable). 

 

Sec. 22-4. Use of Streets 

(a) Special events organizations may obtain use of public property by approval of the city council 

and other authorizing agencies during the term of the event. 

Sec. 22-6. Hours of Operation 

Peddlers in the city shall limit their business operations to the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 2:00 a.m. All 

peddlers must adhere to the city’s noise ordinance, Chapter 12 Article 2, limiting noise emissions to 72 

decibels between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., including noise from generators.  

  

ARTICLE II. LICENSE 

Sec. 22-31. License required. 

(a) Generally. It shall be the unlawful for any person to engage in the business of peddler (vendor), as an 

independent peddler or helper as defined in section 22-1, without first obtaining a license/permit as 

provided herein for the period during which the vendor plans to conduct business. No such license shall 



June 3, 2022 
 

be issued or become effective until seven business days (excluding Sundays and holidays) have elapsed 

from time of application therefor. 

(b) Areas and Events allowed: 

1. Mobile Food Vending: 

(i) Public property. Mobile food vending shall only be allowed on public property when part of an 

approved Special Event. All mobile food vendors must submit a site plan for review and approval. 

Mobile Food Trucks and Vendors must not block public or private driveways, must not block public 

street or sidewalks, must not block access to public drains and/or utilities. Any vehicle/vendor found 

blocking such structures or facilities will be ordered to move or leave. 

Outside of Special Events, Mobile food vending in the CBD and GBD Districts shall be limited to the time 

between May 1 and October 31.  

 

(ii) Private property. Mobile food vending on private property shall be allowed in all non-residential 

districts and must include a parking plan review. Outside of Special Events, the number of Mobile Food 

and/or Temporary Food vendors on a parcel of private property in the Central Business District or the 

General Business District is limited to no more than one unit on any single day, unless a food court is 

permitted pursuant to Sec. 22-31 (b)(3) of this ordinance.   

Outside of Special Events, Mobile Food Vending on private property within the CBD and GBD is limited 

to the time between May 1 and October 31. 

 

(iii) Special Events. 

Special Event organizers may submit an event site plan that shows the location of mobile food vendors, 

and Special Event Organizers may apply for vendor permits on behalf of mobile vendors contracted for 

or invited to an event by the Special Event Organizer. An application submitted by a Special Event 

Organizer for a blanket permit must contain assurances from the Event Organizer that all vendors can 

and will comply with all applicable local, state, and federal rules and regulations. A blanket permit is only 

good for the duration of the Special Event. Special Event Organizers must agree to advise the City of St. 

Ignace of any vendors that would not be covered by the Organizers blanket permit request. 

Mobile food vending as part of a Special Event is allowed year-round.  

 

(iii) In a residential district, mobile food vending and catering on private property shall only be allowed 

as part of a private event and shall only serve food to event attendees and not the general public. 

Mobile food vending on private residential property shall not be allowed to utilize public property 

including, but not limited to, sidewalks, streets, and rights-of-way. The outdoor preparation and service 

of food by a mobile food vendor or caterer in residential areas shall be limited to the hours between 10 

A.M. to 10 P.M., standard or daylight savings time. Mobile food vendors and caterers attending to a 



June 3, 2022 
 

private party in a residential area are not required to obtain operating permits from the City of St. 

Ignace. 

 

2. Mobile non-food vending: 

(i) Public Property. Non-food mobile vending shall only be allowed on public property when part of an 

approved Special Event. All mobile vendors must submit a site plan for review and approval. Mobile 

non-food Vendors must not block public or private driveways, must not block public street or sidewalks, 

must not block access to public drains and/or utilities. Any vehicle/vendor found blocking such 

structures or facilities will be ordered to move or leave. 

 

(ii) Private Property. Non-food mobile vending is allowed on private property in all non-residential 

districts when allowed by the property owner and permitted by City of St. Ignace. Outside of Special 

Events, Non-food mobile vending in the CBD and GBD is limited to one unit per property description. 

 

(iii) Special Events 

Special Event organizers may submit an event site plan that shows the location of mobile vendors, and 

Special Event Organizers may apply for vendor permits on behalf of mobile vendors contracted for or 

invited to an event by the Special Event Organizer. An application submitted by a Special Event 

Organizer for a blanket permit must contain assurances from the Event Organizer that all vendors can 

and will comply with all applicable local, state, and federal rules and regulations. A blanket permit is only 

good for the duration of the Special Event. Special Event Organizers must agree to advise the City of St. 

Ignace of any vendors that would not be covered by the Organizers blanket permit request. 

 

3. Food Courts 

An owner of private property in the CBD or the GBD may apply for permission to create a Food Court on 

the owner’s premises. Such Food Courts, if permitted can consist of no more than six (6) individual 

mobile food vending units based within the owner’s property. Applications for a Food Court must be 

reviewed by the St. Ignace Downtown Development Authority (D.D.A.) and must be approved by the St. 

Ignace City Council. A proposed Food Court must be found, by the St. Ignace D.D.A., to be in the best 

interests of businesses and activities in the CBD and GBD. The City Council of St. Ignace may only act on 

a Food Court application recommended for approval by the St. Ignace D.D.A. An application for a Food 

Court must include a site plan and description of days and times of operation of the Food Court. 

 

4. Farmer’s Markets: 

Farmer’s Markets on Public Property are allowed in the CBD and/or GBD when sponsored and 

conducted by a Special Event Organizer approved by the City of St. Ignace City Council. Farmer’s Markets 

on Private Property are allowed in the CBD and/or GBD when approved by City Administration. The 



June 3, 2022 
 

Event Organizer must annually request approval for the Farmer’s Market. The Farmer’s Market Event 

Organizer must submit a site plan to the City of St. Ignace describing the area proposed for the Market 

along with an estimate of the approximate number of vendors to be located within the Market. Vendors 

in an approved Farmer’s Market are not required to obtain City of St. Ignace permits under the Peddler’s 

Ordinance when the merchandise being sold is limited to farm-produced products and/or merchandise 

such as handicraft and artwork created by the vendor. The Market Event Organizer is responsible for 

assuring that vendors only market farm produced products, and handicraft and artwork produced by the 

individual vendors. The Event Organizer is responsible for annually notifying the Michigan Department 

of Agriculture and Rural Development of the dates for operation of the Market. 

 

5. Flea Markets: 

Flea Markets (vendors selling used merchandise, collectible items, antiques, and vendor produced 

crafts) on Public Property are allowed in the CBD and/or GBD when sponsored and conducted by a 

Special Event Organizer approved by the City of St. Ignace City Council. Flea Markets on Private Property 

are allowed in the CBD and/or GBD when approved by City Administration. The Event Organizer must 

annually request approval for the Flea Market. The Flea Market Event Organizer must submit a site plan 

to the City of St. Ignace describing the area proposed for the Market along with an estimate of the 

approximate number of vendors to be located within the Market. Vendors in an approved Flea Market 

are not required to obtain City of St. Ignace permits under the Peddler’s Ordinance when the 

merchandise being sold is limited to farm-produced products, baked goods, and/or merchandise such as 

handicraft and artwork created by the vendor, the sale of used items, collectible items, and antiques. 

The Market Event Organizer is responsible for assuring that vendors only market approved products. 

The Event Organizer is responsible for annually notifying the Michigan Department of Agriculture and 

Rural Development of the dates for operation of the Market, if the Market will contain vendors selling 

farm-produced products and/or baked goods. 

 

6. Garage and Estate Sales on Private Residential Property: 

Garage and Estate Sales on private property in residential areas do not require operating permits. The 

display and sale of merchandise from a garage or estate sale must limited to private property, may not 

occupy public sidewalks or rights-of-way. Garage and Estate Sales are limited to a three (3) day duration. 

Any residential property is limited to no more than four (4) sale events per calendar year. 

 

Sec. 22-32. Special events and special events organization.  

 (2) The city council shall determine that the proposed vending during the special event is in the 

public interest; 

 (e) The special event organization shall provide a list of the event’s vendors and no later than 

five working days prior to the event  



June 3, 2022 
 

 (f) The special event organization must provide a letter from property owners permitting 

vendors the use of property not owned by city 

 (g) The special event organization must provide a site plan for all public and private properties 

used by each vendor during the special event, including vendor’s name and goods to be sold. Said site 

plan shall be provided to the city clerk office no later than 72 hours prior to the vent.  

 (i) The city shall be allowed to determine which vendors may participate in the event and shall 

regulate same, subject to the conditions specified in chapter 22 of the Code.  

Sec. 22-33. Interstate commerce. Delete. 

Sec. 22-34. Bond requirement. Delete.  

Sec. 22-35. Application.  

No permit will be issued unless through application on a form provided by the city. 

Sec. 22-36. Investigation.  

DELETE. 

Sec. 22-38. Badges. 

DELETE. 

Sec. 22-40. Nontransferability.  

No license issued under the provisions of this chapter shall be used at any time by any person or 

business other than the person or business to whom it was issued.  

Add:  

Sec. 22-44. Severability. 

If any section, clause, or provision of this Ordinance is declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by 

a court of competent jurisdiction, said declaration shall not affect the remainder of the Ordinance, 

which shall be given effect without the invalid portion or application. 

 




















